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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
DEREK S. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs@lewisbrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley.Arnett@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO.
behalf of all other similarly situated,
NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL
Plaintiffs, ACTION UNDER 28 U.S.C. SECTION
1441(b) [DIVERSITY OF CITIZENSHIP]
VS.

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
INC. and DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants. Action Filed: February 9, 2018
Trial Date: None Set

TO THE CLERK OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN
DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant American Property Management, Inc.
(“American Property Management” or “Defendant”), by and through its counsel, hereby removes
to this Court the State Court action described below on the basis of diversity of citizenship
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1332 and 28 U.S.C. §1441(b) as follows:

COMPLAINT AND TIMELINESS OF REMOVAL

1. On February 9, 2018, Plaintiff Jessica Barrios (“Plaintiff”), by and through her
attorney, filed a civil action in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of
Stanislaus, entitled JESSICA BARRIOS v. AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC.,

and DOES 1-10, inclusive, Case No. 2028910 (“Complaint™). A copy of the Summons and
4825-3364-3615.1 1
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Complaint are attached as Exhibit A to the Declaration of Derek S. Sachs (“Sachs Decl.”). To the
knowledge of Defendant, no other defendants have been either named or served in the instant
action.

2. American Property Management was served with the Summons and Complaint on
or about February 9, 2018. Declaration of Brooke Andersen (“Andersen Decl.”) { 3; Exhibit A.
This Notice is timely because it is filed within thirty days after Defendant was served with a copy
of the Complaint, as is required by 28 U.S.C. §1446(b).

3. The Summons and Complaint comprise all copies of process, pleadings, and orders
served upon American Property Management in the state court action and are being filed with this
notice as required by 28 U.S.C. §1446(a).

DIVERSITY JURISDICTION EXISTS

4, The basis for removal is that this Court has original jurisdiction of this action under
28 U.S.C. 81332 and is one which may be removed to this Court by Defendant pursuant to 28
U.S.C. 81441(b), in that it is a civil action wherein the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000,
exclusive of interests and costs, and is a civil action between citizens of different states such that
complete diversity exists.

5. Plaintiff alleges that she is an individual who resided in California at all times
pertinent to the instant litigation. See Sachs Decl. at  3; Exhibit A at { 8.

6. American Property Management was, at the time of the filing of this action, and
still is, a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Washington, having its principal
place of business in Bellevue, Washington. Andersen Decl. {1 5 and 6.

THE AMOUNT IN CONTROVERSY REQUIREMENT IS SATISFIED

7. Plaintiff’s Complaint asserts the following causes of action: (1) Failure to Pay
Overtime Wages; (2) Failure to Provide Mandatory Rest Breaks; (3) Failure to Provide Timely
and Accurate Itemized Wage Statements; (4) Failure to Pay All Compensation Due and Payable
Upon Termination of Employment; (5) Unlawful and/or Unfair Business Practices; (6) Private
Attorneys General Act Claim for Civil Penalties; (7) Unlawful Discrimination Based Upon Sex;

(8) Wrongful Termination in Violation of Public Policy.
4825-3364-3615.1 2

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION UNDER 28 U.S.C. SECTION 1441(b) [DIVERSITY OF
CITIZENSHIP]




LEWIS
BRISBOIS
BISGAARD
&SMTHLLP

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

© 00 ~N o o b~ w NP

S T N N N O T N T N T N S e N N N T S S e
©® N o U B~ W N P O © O N o o~ W N L O

Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO Document 1 Filed 03/12/18 Page 3 of 6

8. Based on Plaintiff’s allegations, the amount in controversy appears to exceed the
sum or value of $75,000, exclusive of interest and costs. Removal is proper if, from the
allegations of the Complaint and the Notice of Removal, it is more likely than not that the claim
exceeds $75,000. See Sanchez v. Monumental Life Ins. Co. (9th Cir. 1996) 102 F.3d 398, 403-
404; Luckett v. Delta Airlines, Inc. (5th Cir. 1999) 171 F.3d 295, 298.

0. While Defendant denies any and all liability to Plaintiff, based on a conservative
good faith estimate of the value of the alleged damages in this action, the amount in controversy in
this case well exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest and costs.

10. Plaintiff was paid an hourly wage of $ 19.00 at the time of her termination and
worked an average of 40 hours a week. See Sachs Decl. at § 5; Exhibit C.

11.  Although Plaintiff does not quantify her potential damages, under Plaintiff’s
Unlawful Discrimination Based Upon Sex and Wrongful Termination in Violation of Public
Policy causes of action, she can potentially recover lost income based on a violation of these laws.
Plaintiff’s Complaint contains the following allegations: “[a]s a proximate result of the conduct of
Defendant, Ms. Barrios has suffered damages in terms of lost wages, lost bonuses, lost benefits,
and other pecuniary loss according to proof . . . . The amount of Ms. Barrios’ damages will be
ascertained at trial.” See Sachs Decl. at { 6; Exhibit A at 1 88, 98.

12. The U.S. District Courts-Median Time Intervals From Filing to Disposition of Civil
Cases Table C-5 indicates that as of December 31, 2016, it took a median of 22.9 months from the
filing of a case to the completion of trial. Sachs Decl. 4, Exhibit B. Accordingly, if Plaintiff is
unable to find alternative work, she can potentially recover 22.9 months of her annual wage, which
would be approximately $75,417.33.

13. In regards to waiting time penalties, Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges “As a result of
Defendant’s failure to pay all earned and unpaid wages at the time of termination of and/or
resignation from employment, Plaintiff . . . [is] entitled to waiting time penalties pursuant to
California Labor Coode 8203, as well [as] attorneys’ fees and costs.” See Sachs Decl. at § 7;
Exhibit A at § 61. California Labor Code section 201(a) provides in pertinent part that “[i]f an

employer discharges an employee, the wages earned and unpaid at the time of discharge are due
4825-3364-3615.1 3
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and payable immediately.” An employer that willfully violates this provision may be assessed
waiting time penalties in accordance with Labor Code section 203. If the penalties are assessed,
the employer will owe an amount in addition to the unpaid wages equal to the employee’s daily
wages for each day the wages remain unpaid, capped at thirty days’ wages. Cal. Lab. Code § 203.
The statute of limitations for waiting time penalties is three years. See Pineda v. Bank of America,
N.A. 50 Cal. 4th 1389, 1395 (2010).

14. Using Plaintiff’s last hourly rate of $19.00, the potential waiting time penalties
total $4,560.00 ($19.00 per hour x 8 hours/day x 30 days maximum waiting time penalties =
$4,560.00)

15. In terms of payroll stub penalties, Plaintiff’s complaint alleges “Plaintiff . . . allege
to and have suffered actual harm as a result of Defendant’s knowing and intentional violation of
the California Labor Code as it pertains to the provision of time and accurate wage statements.”
See Sachs Decl. { 8, Exhibit A at § 55. Labor Code section 226(a) requires that nine categories of
information be included on each pay stub, including:(1) gross wages earned; (2) total hours
worked by each employee; (3) the number of piece-rate units earned and any applicable piece rate
if the employee is paid on a piece-rate basis; (4) all deductions; (5) net wages earned; (6) the
inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is being paid; (7) the employee’s name and
identification number or the last four digits of the employee’s social security number; (8) the name
and address of the legal entity that is the employer; and (9) all applicable hourly rates in effect
during the pay period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the
employee. If there is a violation, the damages are governed by Labor Code section 226(e), which
provides that “[a]n employee suffering injury as a result of a knowing and intentional failure by an
employer to comply with subdivision (a) is entitled to recover the greater of all actual damages or
fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars
($100) per employee for each violation in a subsequent pay period, not to exceed an aggregate
penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000), and is entitled to an award of costs and reasonable
attorneys fees.”

I
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16.  During the one year statue of limitations period, Plaintiff received 18 paystubs with
alleged violations, which would result in penalties of $1,750.00 ($50 for the first violation and
$100 x 27 for the remaining violations).

17. In regards to rest periods, Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges “Defendant maintained a
regular practice of interrupting or failing to permit and/or authorize nonexempt employees a
mandated rest period, during their usual and customary (minimum of) eight-hour (8) shifts, five
(5) to six (6) days per week.” See Sachs Decl. 1 9 Exhibit A at  45. If an employer fails to
provide an employee a rest period in accordance with an applicable IWC Order, the employer shall
pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee’s regular rate of pay for each
workday that the rest period is not provided. Labor Code Section 226.7. Thus, if an employer
does not provide all of the rest periods required in a workday, the employee is entitled to one
additional hour of pay for that workday, not one additional hour of pay for each rest period that
was not provided during that workday.

18.  Assuming that Plaintiff missed rest breaks at least 3-5 days per week, and an
average hourly rate of $15.00 over the entire course of her employment (approximately 79 weeks)
the potential rest period premiums would be $45.00 to $75.00 per week, or $3,555.00 to $5.925.00
in total.

19. In addition to lost wages and benefits, Plaintiff alleges that she “has also suffered
and will continue to suffer physical and emotional injuries, including humiliation, anguish,
embarrassment and anxiety . . . . the amount of Ms. Barrios” damages will be ascertained at trial.”
Sachs Decl. { 10, Exhibit A at 11 88, 97. In determining whether the jurisdictional minimum is
met, courts consider all recoverable damages, including emotional distress damages, punitive
damages, and attorneys’ fees. See Galt G/S v. JSS Scandinavia (9th Cir. 1998) 142 F.3d 1150,
1155-56. In fact, courts have held that such allegations alone are sufficient to satisfy the amount
in controversy requirement. See Egan v. Premier Scales & Sys. (W.D. Ky. 2002) 237 F.Supp.2d
774, 776 (where plaintiff sought damages for embarrassment, humiliation, and willful, malicious
and outrageous conduct, the court held that the defendant could “easily make the case that the

claims are more likely than not to reach the federal amount in controversy requirement.”).
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20. Plaintiff also requests an unspecified amount in punitive damages. Sachs Decl.
11, Exhibit A at 1 90, 99. Similar to compensatory damages, Plaintiff’s claim for punitive
damages are part of the amount in controversy when determining diversity jurisdiction. See
Gibson v. Chrysler Corp. (9th Cir. 2001) 261 F.3d 927, 945. California juries have returned
verdicts with substantial punitive damage awards in employment discrimination actions. See
Simmons v. PCR Tech. (ND. Cal. 2002) 209 F.Supp.2d 1029, 1033 (“the jury verdicts in these
cases amply demonstrate the potential for large punitive damage awards in employment
discrimination cases”); see also Aucina v. Amoco Oil Co. (SD. lowa 1994) 871 F. Supp. 332, 334
(“[b]ecause the purpose of punitive damages is to capture the defendant’s attention and deter
others from similar conduct, it is apparent that the plaintiff’s claim for punitive damages alone
might exceed [the jurisdictional amount”). This confirms that the amount in controversy likely
exceeds the jurisdictional minimum.

SUPPLEMENTAL JURISDICTION EXISTS

21. The general rule for diversity actions with multiple plaintiffs is that at least one
named plaintiff's claim in a class action suit must be greater than the jurisdictional amount in order
to allow for supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1367. See Gibson v. Chrysler Corp., 261
F.3d 927, 943-45 (9th Cir. 2001). In the Ninth Circuit, if one of the named Plaintiffs meets the
jurisdictional minimum, removal of the entire class would be proper based upon supplemental
jurisdiction. See Gibson, 261 F.3d at 943-45; 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

22. Here, given that Defendant has established that Plaintiff’s amount in controversy
exceeds the amount necessary to establish diversity jurisdiction, removal of the entire class is
proper based on supplemental jurisdiction.

DATED: March 12, 2018 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

Derek S. Sachs

Ashley N. Arnett

Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.

4825-3364-3615.1 6
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp
DEREK S. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs@lewisbrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley.Arnett@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO.

behalf of all other similarly situated,
NOTICE OF REMOVAL TO FEDERAL
Plaintiffs, COURT

VS.

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
INC. and DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants. Action Filed: February 9, 2018
Trial Date: None Set

TO PLAINTIFF AND HER ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1441, Defendant American Property
Management filed on March 12, 2018 a Notice of Removal in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California, a copy of which is attached hereto, and said matter shall proceed
hereafter in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

DATED: March l2-= 2018 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

/\/’% —

By: e //
Derek S. Sachs
Ashley N. Arnett
Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.

4816-89614175.1
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp
DEREK S. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs@lewisbrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley.Arnett@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
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JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO.
behalf of all other similarly situated,

o
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NOTICE OF REMOVAL TO FEDERAL
Plaintiffs, COURT
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w

VS.

o
=

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
INC. and DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

[
(7]

Defendants. Action Filed:  February 9, 2018
Trial Date: None Set

[u—y
[~

—
L 3

TO: Clerk of the Superior Court, County of Stanislaus:

ot
o

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1441, Defendant American Property

[
(=]

Management, Inc. filed on March 12,2018 a Notice of Removal in the United States District

[ ]
[

Court for the Northern District of California, a copy of which is attached hereto, and said matter

N
N

|| shall proceed hereafter in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.

[
W

DATED: March ¢ 2018 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

By: J %‘

N

[N
=9

[
9}

[ \e]
(=)

Ashley N. Arnett
Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.
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[~ - BN |
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp
JEFFREY S. RANEN, SB# 224285
E-Mail: Jefirev.Ranendrlewisbrisbois.com
633 West 5" Street, Suite 4000
Los Angeles, California 90071
Telephone: 213.250.1800
Facsimile: 213.250.7900

-

= W W

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
DEREK 8. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs/@lewishrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley. Arvetti@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West EI Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

th

A~ - BN -

10 §| Attorneys for Defendant American Property
Management, Inc,

11
12 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
13 EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
14
15 || JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO. TBD
behalf of all other similarly situated,
16 DECLARATION OF BROOKE
Plaintiffs, ANDERSEN IN SUPPORT OF
17 DEFENDANT AMERICAN PROPERTY
Vs, MANAGEMENT, INC.’S NOTICE OF
18 REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION TO

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
19 || INC. and DOES | through 10 inclusive,

20 Defendants. Action Filed: February 9, 2018
NS Trial Date: None Set

21

22 I. Brooke Andersen, declare as follows:

23 1. lam the Director of Operations for American Capital Group, the parent company of

24 || Defendant American Property Management, Inc., doing business as Washington Property
25 || Management in California, (hercinafter collectively “APM™). This declaration is offered in
26 |i support of Defendant APM’s Notice of Removal of this action to United States District Court.

27 || The facts stated herein are within my personal knowledge and if called to testify, [ could and

EWI 28 || would competently do so as set forth herein,
!; 4833-1260-2207. 1
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L

1 2. As Director of Operations for Defendant APM. 1 oversee legal matters for APM,
and krow and understand APM’s corporate structure, the location of its headquarters and principal

place of business, as well as the location of its senior management.

= W oW

3, On February 9. 2018, Plaintiff served APM's registered agent for service of process

(]

with the Summons and Complaint from the state court for the action entitled Jessica Barrios v.
American Property Management, Inc., and Does 1 through 10, California Superior Court,
Stanislaus County, Case No. 2028910.

4. A true and correct copy of the Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

W

-~

L3 APM is, and at all times alleged in the Complaint was, a corporation incorporated
10 || under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Washington.

11 6. APM’s principal place of business is located in Bellevue, Washington, APM’s

12 || corporate headquarter is located at 110 - 110th Ave NE, Suite 550, Bellevue, Washington 98004,
13 | All of APM’s marketing and administrative functions take place in Washington, along with is

14 || annual sharcholders meeting. APM’s executive management team, including its Chief Fxecutive
15 || Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, direct. control, and coordinate the

16 || corporation’s activities from Washington.

17 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the
18 || foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on March C] . 2018, at

19 || Bellevue, Washington.,

' oot Lrdurson

Brooke Andersen

%EWI 28
4833-1260-2207.1 A
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLp
DEREK S. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs@lewisbrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley.Arnett@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO.
behalf of all other similarly situated,
DECLARATION OF DEREK S. SACHS IN
Plaintiffs, SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S NOTICE
OF REMOVAL

Vs.

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
INC. and DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants. Action Filed: February 9, 2018
Trial Date: None Set

I, Derek S. Sachs, declare:

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice in all of the courts of the State of
California and am a partner at the law firm Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP, attorneys of
record for Defendant American Property Management, Inc. (hereinafter “American Property
Management” or “Defendant”). The facts set forth herein are of my own personal knowledge and
if sworn I could and would testify competently thereto.

2. A true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Complaint, entitled Jessica Barrios v.
American Property Management, Inc., and Does 1 through 10, filed in Stanislaus County Superior
Court, Case No. 2028910, is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

3. In the Complaint, Plaintiff alleges that she is an individual who resided in
California at all times pertinent to the instant litigation. See Plaintiff’s Complaint at § 8.

4818-3011-5167.1 1
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4. The U.S. District Courts-Median Time Intervals From Filing to Disposition of Civil
Cases Table C-5 indicates that as of December 31, 2016, it took a median of 22.9 months from the
filing of a case to the completion of trial. Attached as Exhibit B is a true and correct copy of the
U.S. District Courts—Median Time Intervals From Filing to Disposition of Civil Cases, Table C-
5.

3. A true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s payroll records evidencing her hourly rate of
$19.00 hour and average of 40 hours worked a week is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

6. Plaintiff’s Complaint contains the following allegations: “[a]s a proximate result of
the conduct of Defendant, Ms. Barrios has suffered damages in terms of lost wages, lost bonuses,
lost benefits, and other pecuniary loss according to proof . . . . The amount of Ms. Barrios’
damages will be ascertained at trial.” See Exhibit A at 47 88, 98.

7. Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges “As a result of Defendant’s failure to pay all earned
and unpaid wages at the time of termination of and/or resignation from employment, Plaintiff . . .
[is] entitled to waiting time penalties pursuant to California Labor Coode §203, as well [as]
attorneys’ fees and costs.” See Exhibit A at q 61.

8. Plaintiff’s complaint alleges “Plaintiff . . . allege to and have suffered actual harm
as a result of Defendant’s knowing and intentional violation of the California Labor Code as it
pertains to the provision of time and accurate wage statements.” See Exhibit A at § 55.

9. Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges “Defendant maintained a regular practice of
interrupting or failing to permit and/or authorize nonexempt employees a mandated rest period,
during their usual and customary (minimum of) eight-hour (8) shifts, five (5) to six (6) days per
week.” See Exhibit A at § 45.

10.  Inthe Complaint, in addition to lost wages and benefits, Plaintiff alleges that she
“has also suffered and will continue to suffer physical and emotional injuries, including
humiliation, anguish, embarrassment and anxiety . . . . the amount of Ms. Barrios’ damages will be
ascertained at trial.” See Exhibit A at 49 88, 97.

11.  In the Complaint, Plaintiff also requests an unspecified amount in punitive

damages. See Exhibit A at 9 90, 99.

4818-3011-5167.1 2
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I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America and the
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on March _‘f_, 2018, at

Sacramento, California.

“ Berek S Sachs—

4818-3011-5167.1 3

DECLARATION OF DEREK S. SACHS IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL
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(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): LA
American Property Management, Inc. and DOES | through 10, inclusive .
perty Manag L, 1 ug H , ?GiEB"g M 8: 51

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: o Eng oF Tii sl ERiG. LOURIL
1.0 ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): __ U
Jessica Barrios, individually and on behalf of others similarly situated Y NATASHA RENTERIA
_ ? = - - - DhFRu

;d(g'lvcal You heve been sued. The court may decide agalnst yau without your being heard unlaas you respond wilhin 30days. Read the informalion
slow.
You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and lagal papers are satvad on you Lo file a written response al this court and have a copy
sarved on the plalntiff. A fetter or.phone call will ot protect you. Your wrilten responge must be In proper fegal form 1 you want the court to-hear your
case. Thers may be a caurt form that you can Use for your respense. You can find these coust foims and moré Information ot the Catifornia Courls
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca,gov/selffelp), your county law fibrary, or the courthouse nearest you, If yau cannot pay the {Ring fee, ask
the court clazk for & fee waiver farm. If you do not file your tzspanse on time, you may loge the case by defauil, and your wages, money, énd properly
may be teken without further warring from the court, ' S
There are other legal requirements, You may want to call 8 _ 6\
referral service. [f you caanot atford an allornay, you may be eligibie for free legal servicas from a ionprofit legal services program. You can Tocate
fhese nonprofit groups at the Californla Lega! Services Web sita (www.lawhelpcafiformia.org), the Calfornla Cowsts Online Seil-Help Cenier )
{www.couriinfo.ca.goviseifelp), or by contacting your local court or county bar agsociation. NOTE: The court has a statutory llen lor walved fees and
costs on any setllemant or arbiration award of $10,000 or more In-a civil case, The-court's llen muset be pald before the court will dismiss the case. ’
Mn\tg;()fégn han demandado. Si no responte dontro da 30 dles, {a corts puede dacidir én su canira sin-escucher su versién, Lea fa informacion a
| ‘continyacién.
{  Tiens 30 DIAS DE CALENDARKD despuds de qué e enireguen esla cildcion y papeles lagales para presentar una respuista por sscrilo en esia
torle y hacer qua s eniregue une copla 8l demandanie. na e telaf { ;
an forrhalo fegel comecto i desaa qus procesen su caso ert la Gorte. Es posible que haya un formulario que usled pusdS User Pare su (espussts.
Pusde encontrar estos formulerios de la corle'y més informacitn en el Centro de Ayuds de las Cortes de Callfomnia fwww.sucofe.ca.gov), en i
bibkofeca de fayes de su condado o on fa coite quie fs quade més cerce, S1no pusde pagar la cuote de presentacion, pida al secraltrio s ls carte
que lo &4 un formivlerio de exencidn de pego de Cuotas. SIno presents $U respussia a flampo, puede perder el caso por incumplimiento y la corfe lo
podré quiter su sueldo, dinero y biengs sin més edveriancia, . ) ' ,
Hay elras requisilas legales. Es récomendable que llems ¢ un abogado Inmediatamene. Si o conoce & un abogado, puede lamar & un servico de
-remisién & abogados: Si no puede pagar a un shogado, oS posible qua cumpls con los reqiiisilos pare oblaner servicios fogales gratyitos de un
progrena de servicios legales ain fnes de Jucro: Pusda enconlrar eslos grupos sin fines e tucro en al sifio web de California Legel Semvices,
(wwaw.Jawhelpcalifornia.org), en ef Cenlro de Ayuda de fas Carles de Califomla, (wive:sucort.ca.gov} o ponidndase en conlscto con Ja-corle-oof
coleglo da abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corts liene derecho & feclemat las cuolas y fos cosios exentos por imponer un gravemen sokre
' cesidn da athitfeje en un caso de derecho tivil Tiene que

pager el g_ravém'an da I8 corfo srles de que la corle pueda ‘desecher ol caso.

an altomey right away. I you do not know ar: atiornay, you may want o call an atiomey |

Una carta o una liamada tefafdnica no o protegen. Su respuesta por. escrilo tione quie eslar

cualquiar racuperacion de $10,000.6 més de valor reclbide medianis un acuerdo o una con
[esemmee 202 B8 TU

The name sind address of the court is:

(E nomibre y direccion de fa corte es): Stanislaus County Superior Court

801 10th Stveet, 4th Floor
Modesto, CA 95354 ‘
The name, address, and telephane number of plaintiff’s attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, s:

(El nombre, in direccién y el niimero de teléfono del ahogado de! demandante, o del dsmandante que no liene abogado, es):

Law Office of Thomas P. Hogan 1207 13th Street, Suite I, Modesto CA 95354 (209)-492-9335

DATE:"9=8=18— n ! ; : NATASHA RENTERIA  peputy
{Fochs) FEB 09 2018 foeomiuri) , , c

{Adjunio)

{For proof of service of litls summons, use Proo of Servica of Summons (form POS-010).)

(Para prueba-de enlraga de esia cllalion use ef fonnutaro Proof of Service of Summeons, {POS-010)).
‘ , NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1. L] a¢ an Individual defendant.

2] as the person sued under the fictitious name of {specify):

TBEAL

a. 7] on behalf of (specify): American Property Management, Inc.

under: {Z] CCP 416,10 {corporation) [ CCP 416.60 (minor)
] ©CP 416,20 {defunct corporation) ] ccP 416.70 (conservatee)
CCP 416,40 {assoctalion or partnership) [ ] CCP 416.80 (authorlzed person)

23 other (specify):

A, [E‘l?ypgtéonal del&?ﬂfm (dete):. ! mog_zm . , Pago 1 ot 4

Foim Adopiéd for Maixotory Usa ' " SUMMONS Cods el G mec‘iiéjifg‘ ;?,3

Juiclal Coinctt of Califoinla
BUM:100 (Rev. July 1, 2009)

~



10
11

12

13

14
15
16
17
is
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26 |

27

28

THOMAS P. HOGAN, ESQ
SHAWNTE PRIEST, ESQ

1207 13" Street, Suite |

Modesto, California 95354 '

T: 209-214-6600 F: 209-492-9356

|SCOTT A. MILLER, ESQ
BONNIE FONG, ESQ

5023 Parkway Calabasas

Calabasas, California 91302-1421

Telephone: 818-788-8081

Facsimile; 877-578-3555

Attorney for Jessica Barrios

JESSICA BARRIOS, individually
and on behalf of all other similarly
situated,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

AMERICAN PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT, INC. and DOES
1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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LAW OFFICE O THOMAS'P. HOGAN
95085
298460
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|LAW OFFICES OF SCOTT A. MILLER, APC
230322
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, FOR THE COUNTY OF STANISLAUS

CaseNo: 2002 89 10

CLASS ACTION

PLAINTIFF’S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

1,
2.

3.

5,
6.
7.

8.

FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES
FAILURE TO PROVIDE MANDATORY
REST BREAKS

FAILURE TO PROVIDE TIMELY AND
ACCURATE ITEMIZED WAGE
STATEMENTS

FAILURE TO PAY ALL COMPENSATION

DUE AND PAYABLE UPON TERMINATION '

OF EMPLOYMENT (UPON DISCHARGE

OR RESIGNATION)

UNLAWFUL AND/OR UNFAIR BUSINESS
PRACTICES

PRIVATE ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT
CLAIM FOR CIVIL PENALTIES
UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION BASED
UPON SEX

WRONGFUL TERMINATION IN
VIOLATION OF PUBLIC POLICY

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

i

fese

PLAINTIFF’S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 1,

T

SILVEIRA
—

uding Tria],

signed to JudgdWARIE SOVEY
all purposes inc}

for

ent im; as

This case has been
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PNt Jessica Bartios, as an individual acting on behaif of hersell and all others
similarly situated (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plaintiff); hereby files this Complaint
against Defendant American Property Management, Inc. and DOES 1 through 10 (hereafter
collectively referred to as “Defendant™) and alleges as follows:

L INTRODUCTION

i This is a proposed class action lawsuit seeking recovery for
Defendant’s violations of California Labor Code (“Labor Code™), California Business and
Professions Code ("BPC"), the applicable Wage Order(s) issued by the California Industrial
Welfare Commission ("TWC Wage Order(s)™), and related common law principles. The
essential factual and legal allegation(s) are that Defendant, systematically engaged in wage
abuse and under payment of their employees in violation of California law, regulation and:
related IWC Orders by failing to pay overtime wages at the requisite rate of pay for hours
worked in excess of eight (8) hour per day. and/or forty (40) hours per week, failed to pay a
minimum wage for all hours worked, failed to provide rest periods, failed to pay all earned
‘wages upon termination of employment, failed to provide accurate wage statements, and failed
to accuraiely pay overtime wages based on payment of a customary and expécted bonus
Plaintiff alleges to be dism‘ctionary‘.

2, These allegations coupled with others lead Plaintiff to allége that Defendant
has violated the California Labor Coode which also constitites unlawful and unfair business
practices in violation of California’s unfair competition laws. The acts complained of herein
occutred, continue to occur and will continue to occur, at least in part, within the time period
| from four (4) years preceding the filing of the this Complaint, up to and through the time of the

commencement of trial for this matter. Hereinafter, this time period will be referred to as the

'PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 2
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|| “Relevant. Time. Perind™ or the: proposed “Class Period”, interchangeably, unless otherwise

delimited by applicable statute of limitation.

SUMMARY OF CLAIMS AND F

kR Plaintiff, at all relevant time periods stated herein, or part thereof, provided
property management services to and/or worked for Defendant at its apartment-home propetties
in Stanislaus County, California. Plaintiff’s work is substantially similar to othets acting as or
providing services to Defendant at its apartment-home properties in San Joaquin, Yolo and
Sacramento counties.

4, As a matter of course during all or substantial portion of the proposed class
period, Plaintiff and each member of the proposed Class[es], were regularly paid an. i;lcentive
leasing bonus, which amount was not included in the regular rate of all remuneration for
employment; specifically the amount was not computed in the regular hourly rate of pay and |
overtime compensation pursuant to California Labor Code §§200 and 204. |

5. As a matter of course during all or substantial portion of the praposed class
period, each Plaintiff and each member of the proposed Class{es), werc regulatly, uniformly and
systematically prohibited by Defendant fiom taking timel‘y, compliant, uninterrupted paid 10-
minute meal periods for periods of approximately four (4) haurs worked, or a major fraction
thereof, as requited by California Labor Code §226.7(b), §512 and the TWC Wage Order; nor
were Plaintiffs or members of the praposed Class[es] paid a oné-hour premivm wage at their
regular rate of hourly pay for each missed, late or interrupted rest period [as alleged herein with
definition of the proposed class or subclass to follow).

6. As a matter of course during all or substantial portion of the proposed class

period, each Plaintiff and each member of the proposed Class[es], were not provided true,

"PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 3
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‘bonus from the overtime calculation, Plaintiff is inforined and believes and based thereon allege

| that Defendant acted willfully and with direct knowledge that its actions were unlawful and
20 |
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Ay Stalements setting forth all hours
actually caused or suffered to work and the corresponding cotrect amounts of pay at the
requisite agreed and legal rate as required by California Labor Code §226 et seq. Because
Defendant did not include the bonus amount in the computation of the houtly rate and overtime
compensation, Plaintiff and members of the proposed Class received inaccurate information
regarding their applicable overtime rate and total overtime compensation per pay period.
Plaintiff is informed and believe and based thereon allege that Defendant acted willfully and
with direct knowledge:that their actions were unlawful and violated California labor standards
[as alteged herein with definition of the proposed class or subciass o follow].

i As a matter of course during all or substantial portion of the proposed class
period, each Plaintiff and each member of the proposed Class[es], who were terminated or
separated from. their employment from Defendant were not timely paid all wages due as
required by California Labor Code §203. Also, since Defendant had no reasonable basis to

believe that it was in compliance with applicable law in excluding the alleged discretionary

violated California labor standards [as alleged herein with definition of the proposed class or
subclass to follow].
PLAINTIFF
8. Plaintiff Jessica Barrios is an individual over the age of cighteen (18) and is
now, and at all times mentioned in this Complaint, a resident of the State of California. Plaintiff,

has suffered harm and/or injury in fact from Defendant’s conduct in subjecting her to systernatic

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 4|
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& regulations,
z 9. Plaintff Jessica Bairios provided property management services to and/or
5 worked for Defendant, between approximately Aptil 20, 2012 through October 20, 2017, in
6 || California as a Leasing Consultant, Bookkeeper, Assistant Community Director and/or
7 || Community Director. Plaintiff Barrios worked at Defendant’s apartment-home properties at
# 3025 Cluistoffersen Parkway in Turlock, California and 3055 Floyd Avenue in Modesto,
1: California, both in Stanislaus County, at all relevant times within four years prior to the filing of
11 this Complaint, as alleged herein.
12 10, Plaintiff has personal knowledge and reasonable belief that she was subjected
13 Hl to discrimination based on sex, related to her pregnancy, pregnancy-related medical condition,
i: childbirth and breastfeeding in the form of denial of promotion and inequitable pay in violation
i 6. of the Fair Employment and Housing Act.
17 11, Plaintiff brings this Complaint against Défendant for aforementioned causes
18 {lof action as listed on Page 1 of this Complaint, without exception. Plaintiff on behalf of herself
N and proposed Class[es] consider Defendant’s willful and methodical disregard for compliance
z: with California common and statutory laws to have caused Plaintiff and proposed Class{es] to
22 be denied compcnsation for all wages owed and denied mandated rest periods. Plaintiff, as will
23 || be described in greater detail below, allegés other violations of Califothia law.
. DEFENDANT
2 12. American Property Management, Inc, (hereinafter referred to as “APM™), is a
2: | property management company licensed to do business and/or operate within the State of
28
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TR Labor Code and applicable

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLATNT FOR DAMAGES - §
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Californizthe County o SUATITATS and 15 Tegistered with the Cahforma Secretary of State, as
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| 1194 et seq., 1198.5, 2810.5, California Cede of Civil Procedure §1021.5, California Business

|for missed rest periods, statutory penalties, restitution, declaratory and injunctive relief,

of November 4, 1998,

13. Based upon the geographic location of APM and with consideration of all the
facts and circumstances determinative of Defendant’s operations and business[es], it is alleged
that Defendant is subject to the applicable Industrial Welfare Commission 'Wage Orders,

California Labor Code §§201, 202, 203, 204(a), 226 ef seq., 300, 351, 432, 500 ef seq., 1030,

and Professions Code §17200 et yeq., und California common law, Defendant being subject to
the above-listed laws have caused Plaintiff, as an adequatc representative of all proposed

Class[es], to seek damages for unpaid overtime compensation,. unpaid minimum wage, wages

attorneys’ fees and costs, prejudgment interest, and other relief as allowed by California Law.

14, Plaintiff is informed and reasonably believes that Defendant is now and/or at
all times mentioned in this Complaint, was in some manner legally responsible for the events,
happenings and circumstances alleged in this Complaint.

15. Plaintiff is informed and reasonably believes that Defendant, at all times
mentioned in this Complaint was or is a member of and/or engaged in a joint venture,
partnership and common enterprise and was acting within the course and scope of, and in
pursuance of said joint venture, partnership or common enterprise.

16. Plaintiff is informed and reasonably believes that Defendant, at all times
mentioned in this Complaint approved of, condoned and/or otherwise ratified each and every

one of the acts and/or omissions alleged in this Complaint,

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 6
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{linclusive, and for that reason, Plaintiff therefore sues Defendants under such fictitious names,

[[proposed Class[es]’ claims based on the nature of the claims and violations of the applicable
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- 17: ~Plaintiff-is-iriformed dnd ieasonably believes that Defendant, at all tifm‘es"
mentioned in this bonnplaint aided and abetted the acts and/or omissions of each and every one
| of Defendant’s agents, officers, directors and/or ruanagers conduct thereby proximately causing
the damages alleged in this Complaint,

| 18. Plaintiff is informed and reasonably believes, and based thereon allege, that
each Defendant acted in all respects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other Defendants, |
catried out a joint scheme, business plan or policy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts
of each Defendant are legally attributable to the ofher Defendants.

19, Plaintiff does not know the true names and capacities, whether individual,

‘carporate, associate, partner, or otherwise of Defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 10,

Plaintiff is informed and believes and therefore alleges that each of said fictitious Defendants
are legally responsible in some manner for the unlawful acts teferred to herein and directly or
proximately cause Plaintiff and proposed Classfes] to be subject to the iliegal eniployment
practices and.injuriés complained of, Plaintiff will seek leave of court to amend this Complaint
to reflect the true names and Capa.c'ities of the Defendants designated herein as DOES when such
identities become know.
I1. JURISDICTION
20. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges each and every paragraph of

this Complaint as though fully set forth, that the Cowt has jurisdiction over the Plaintiff and

Califérnia common and statutory laws. In pacticularity, this Court has jurisdiction in this matter

due to Defendants® violations of Labor Code §§203, §226 et seq., 300 510, 1030, 1194, (198.5,

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 7
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‘ - e O N 4200 T PTATRt TS 2 proposed Class|es]” claims for injunctive

relief and restitution of unpaid wages and othér injuries arising from Défendants’ unlawful
and/or unfair business practices unde Business and Professions Code §17200 et seq. and
California Labor Code §1199 and 2699.5.
HI.VENUE

21. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges each and every paragraph of
this Complaint as though fully set forth, that venue is proper because Defendant resides in, is
located in and/or are domiciled in the County of Stanislaus, California and maintain office[s]
and transacts business in this County, and work was performed by Plaintiff and proposed i

Class{es] which made the subject of this action in the County of Stanislaus, California.

IV.CLASS ALLEGATIONS

22, Plaintiff brings this suit as a class action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure
(“CCP) §3 82, and other similarly sitvated individuals (the “proposed Plaintiff Class™ or
“proposed Class[es]") because there are questions of common or general interest, of many
persons, or when the parties are numerous, and it is impracticable to bring them all before the
COUtt,

23. Plaintiff brings this suit on behalf of herseif and others similarly situated
specifically those members of the Class who wml'ked' for or provided services to Defendant’s
apartment-home complexes in Stanislaus, San Joaquin, Yolo and Sacramento counties, as their
job titles, positions, scope of work, and regulation by Defendant’s policies and/or practices at

the subject of this lawsuit are substantially similar, if not the same.

PLAINTIFE'S COMPLAINT FOR DAM AGES'-'J
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pL THe putalive or proposed PIainfill Class|es) and appropriate subclasses for
which Plaintiffs seek to represent and to certify are currently composed of and defined as

follows:

a. PLAINTIFF FORMER EMPLOYEE CLASS: all California based
individuals in positions, job titles, job codes or job descriptions of maintenance technician,
‘maintenance supervisor, leasing agent, community consultant, bookkeeper, assistant manager,
manager, assistant cotnmunity director, cominunity director and other similar nornenclature
performing substantially identical functions and/or duties who Defendant classificd as
nonexempt based on company records; who were formerly employed by Defendant; who
worked within the time period from four (4) years preceding the filing of this Complaint, up to
and through the time of commencement of trial for this matter.

i E QVERTIME SUBCLASS: All members of the

Plaintiff Former Employee Class who (1) were classified as nonexempt during the
proposed class period (2) who earned an incentive and/or leasing bonus (3) for whom
Defendant did not pay overtime wages at the requisite overtime rates of pay pursuant to
applicable to California law.

2. FORMER EMPLOYEE REST PERIOD SUBCLASS: All members of

the Plaintiff Former Employee Class who (1) were classified as nonexempt during the
proposed class period and did not satisfy the legal requirements for exempt classification,
(2) for whom Defendant did not authorize or permit 10-minute paid rest periods for
approximately cvery four (4) hours worked, or a major fraction thereof, and (3) for whom
Defendant failed to provide one hour of pay at the nonexempt employees' regular rate of

pay for each missed, late, interrupted or non-duty free rest period in lieu thereof,

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 9
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tnembers of the Plaintiff Former Employee Class for whom Defendant did not provide
accurate itemized wage statements showing all hours actually caused or suffered to work
and the applicable and accurate rates of pay.

4. FORMER EMPLOYEE WAITING TIME SUBCLASS: All members of
the Plaintiff Former Employee Class for who (1) from three-years prior to the filing of
the original Complaint separated from Defendant’s employment and (2) for whom
Defendant willfully failed to pay any and all wages due, including unpaid overtime
wages, within seventy-two (72) hours of the time the employee voluntarily ended their
employment with Defendant or immediately upon involuntarily sepatation of their
employment with Defendant.

b. PLAINTIFF CURRENT EMPLOYEE CLASS: all California based
individuals in positions, job titles, job codes or job descriptions of maintenance technician,
maintenance supetrvisor, leasing agent, comtnunity consultant, :'bookkee'per, -assistant manager,
manager, assistant community director, community director and other similac nomenclature
performing substantially identical functions andfor duties who Defendant classified as
nonexempt based on company records; who were formerly employed by Deféndant; who
woiked within the time period from four (4) years preceding the filing of this Complaint, up to
and through the time of commencement.of trial for this matter,

c¢. CURRENT EMPLOYEE OVERTIME SUBCLASS: All members of the

Plaintiff Current Employee Class who (1) were classified as nonexempt during the

proposed class period (2) who earned an incentive and/or leasing bonus (3) for WhOll’l

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 10
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z;pplicabic California law.

d. CURRENT EMPLOYEE REST PERIOD SUBCLASS: All members of
the Plaintiff Current Employee Class who (1) were classified as nonexempt during the
proposed class period and did not satisfy the legal requirements for exempt classification,
(2) for whom Defendant did not authorize or permit 10-minute paid rest periods for
approximately every four (4) hours worked, or a major fraction thereof, and (3) for whom
Defendant failed to providc one hour of pay at the nonexempt employees’ regular rate of
pay for each missed, late, interrupted or non-duty free rest period in Heu thereof.

e. CURRENT EMPLOYEE WAGE STATEMENT SUBCLASS: All
members of the Plaintiff Current Employee- Class for whom Defendant did not provide
accurate itemized wage statements showing all hours actually caused-or suffered to work | -
and the applicable and accurate rates of pay.

25.  Pursuant to Rule of Court 3.765(b), Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend or
modify the class definition[s) with greater specificity, by further division into additional
subclasses, and/or by limitation to particular issues. Plaintiff also reserves the right to pursue the
cause of action for civil penalties under the Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act of 2004
in a representative capacity without regard to CCP §382 requirements.

26.  The proposed Plaintiff Class and all Classes ate so numerous that the individual
joinder of each individual. in the Plaintiff Class and all Classes is impractical. While Plaintiff
does not currently know the exact number of class members, Plaintiff estimates the humber to
exceed 100 individuals, Plaintiff believes that the quantity and identity of such members is

readily ascertainable upon inspection of Defendant’s records.

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLATNT FOR DAMAGES -'11{"
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Ll .. -. .27, .A.class action is-vastly supcrivr to-otlier availablé means for fair and efficient
z adjudication of the Plaintiff’s and all Classes’ claims and would be beneficial to both the parties
i and this Court. A class action will allow a substantial number of similarly situated individuals to
; simultaneously and efficiently prosecute their common claims in a single forum without the
6 (|unnecessary duplication of effort and expense that nurnerous individual actions would entail. In
7 || addition, a class action will serve an important public interest by permitting Plaintiff and all
8 Classes to effectively pursue the recavery of moneys owed to them and affording them an

1: opportunity to vindicate their rights to timely wage payments at legal rates under the Labor

11 {| Code. Finally, a class action will also ¢liminate the potential for inconsistent or contradictory

12 || judgments that is inherent in individual litigation.

13 28.  The subject matter of this Complaint both as-to factual matters and as to matters

i: of law, are such that there are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff and the Classes

16 which predominate over questions affecting only individual members of the Classes that include

17 || but are not limited to:

18 a, Whether Defendants’ leasing bonus should be included in computing the

19 “regular rate” at which an employee is employed, for Defendant’s nonexempt

20

2 employees?

22 b. Whether the Former Employee Overtime Subclass was underpaid

23 overtime compensation?

24 € Whether the Current Employee Overtime Subclass was underpaid

= overtime compensation?

26

27 d. Whethet Defendant failed to provide-accurate itemized wage statements

28 to the Former Employee Wage Statement Subclass?
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—e——Whether—Defemiant Tailed and continues to fail fo provide accurate

itemized wage statements to the Current Employee Wage Statement Subclass?
£. Whether the Defendant failed to provide legal rest petiods and as such
impeded, discouraged and/or dissuaded the Former Employee Rest Period Subclass from

taking compliant rest periods in violation of the Labor Code and the applicable IWC
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Wage Orders?

the applicable IWC Wage Orders?

employnient?

Code?

§2699.59

Employee Classes are entitled to restitution, and;

L Whether Defendant is liable for attorneys’ fees and costs.

g Whether the Defendant failed and continues to fail to provide legal rest
periods and as such impeded, discouraged and/or dissuaded the Current Employee Rest

Period Subclass from taking compliant rest periods in violation of the Labor Code and

h. Whether Former Employee Waiting Tiime Subclass is due waiting time

penalties for Defendant’s failure to pay for all wages earned upon discharge from

i Whether Defendant’s conduct constitutes dc‘ceptivc, unlawful, unfair

and/or fraudulent business practicefs] in violation of California Business and Professions

j. Whether Defendant is subject to all violations under Labor Code

k. Whether Plaintiff Former Employece Classes and Plaintiff Current

29.  Plaintiff has claims typical of the claims of all members of the proposed Classes

because Plaintiff and all members of the Classes sustained injury as a result of Defendant’s

PLAINTIFE'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 13
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lcominen-couse-of-condtict-imrviotation of e taw. Plainail, as a rcp‘resentati've patty, will fairly

and adequately protect the interests of all members of the Classes by pursuit of this Complaint
through civil litigation, Plaintiff is an adequate class representative in that she has no interests:

that are adverse to, or otherwise in conflict with, the interests of all meimbers of the Classes and

1 is dedicated to vigorously pursuing this action on their behalf.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES
(ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF, FORMER EMPLOYEE OVERTIME SUBCLASS AND
CURRENT EMPLOYEE OVERTIME SUBCLASS)
{AGAINST DEFENDANT)

30.  Plaintiff on behalf of herself, Former Employee Overtime Subclass and Current
Employee Qvertime Subclass, ailege this first cause of action, and incotporate by reference and |
re-allege each and every paragraph of this Complaint as though fully set forth:

31.  Plaintiff, Former Employee Overtime Subclass and Current Employee Overtime
Subclass as part of their job duties as a maintenance technician, maintenance supervisor, leasing
agent, community consultant, bookkeepet, assistant manager, manager, assistant community
director, community.director are eligible for a leasing bonus.

32.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses allege that the leasing bonus is outlined by
Defendant’s policy and provides for a continuous structure of dollar amount payout, segregated
by bonus atnount for new leases and banus amount for rencwal leases.

33.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses allege that Defendant APM required regular
tracking of each lease bonus {new or renewal) on a worksheet that is maintained at each

residential property office and/or by each bonus eligible employee, thereby keeping a continual

account of the number of bonuses with dollar amounts of anticipated payout.

PLAINTTFE'S COMPLATNT FOR DAMAGES - 14
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| inn with othei earninigs to determine the regular rate on which overtime pay must be based.
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——~ —3. - -Plaintiff-and-proposed-uibclustes iavé€asonable belief that the [easing bonus is
a measurement of production and/or efficiency and is frequént and substantial as to be
considered part of the regular wages.

35.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses have reasonable belief that the leasing bonus is
guarantced and expected by all eligible individuals as there is limited exception or example of
Defendant APM withholding an earned borms.

36.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses have knowledge and reasonable belief that the
fact that bonus payment will be made, the timing of such payment and the amount of the
payment are commonly known to bonus eligible employees and promised or guaranteed by
Defendant APM.

37.  California law requires inclusion in the regular rate of all remmeration for

employment...bonuses which do not qualify for exclusion from the regular rate...must be totaled

38.  California law in relevant part outlines that if @ bonus is based on a percenlage
of production or some formula other than a flat amount and can be computed and paid with the
wages for the pay period to which the bonus is applicable, overtime ou the bonus must be paid
at the same time as the other earnings for the week, or no later than the payday for the next
regular payroll period (CA Labor Code §204).

39.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses have been denied lawfully due overtime
‘compensation because of Defendant APM’s failute to include the leasing bonus in computing
the regular rate on which overtime pay must be based; the amount to be determined at trial.

40.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses reasonably believe that Defendant’s actions of

withholding lawfully due or the underpayment of avertime compensation was willful, thus they

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 15
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costs.within the titne period from three (3) years preceding the filing of this Complaint

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
| FAILURE TO PROVIDE REST PERIODS
(ON BEHALT OF PLAINTIFF, FORMER EMPLOYEE REST PERIOD SUBCLASS
AND CURRENT EMPLOYEE REST PERIOD SUBCLASS)
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

41,  Plaintiff on belialf of herself, Former Employee Rest Period Subclass and
Current Employee Rest Period Subclass, allege this second cause of action, and incorporate by
reference and re-altege each and every paragraph of this Complaint as though fully set forth:

42.  California Labor Code 226.7(b) i'equires that no employee be made to work
during a rest or recovery period mandated by an applicable LW.C. Wage Order.

43.  California Labor Code and LW.C Wage Oider No. 4-2001 in refevant part
indicate that an employer must autharize and permit rest periods for all non-exempt employees
whose tofal daily work time is at least 3.5 hours. Thus, offering a “rest period at the rate of ten
(10) minutes net rest time per four {4) hours or major fraction thereof.”

44.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses are informed and reasonably believe that they
are or were classified as nonexempt, houtly wage earners, thus are or were entitled to compliant
rest periods.

45.  Defendant maintained a regular practice of interrupting or failing to permit
and/or authorize nonexempt employees a mandated rest period, during their usual and
customary (miniimmn of) eight-hour (8} shifts, five (5) to six (6) days per week,

46.  Defendant failed to maintain, distribute or adequat’elly frain any policy regarding

rest periods to Plaintiff and proposed subclasses.

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 16
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many hours had been worked without a rest or recovery period.

47.  Défendantrégiilarly tailed fo provide for an-ubinterrupted 10-minute rest period-. |

to Plaintiff and proposed subclass by requiring that active work be performed regardless of how

48,  Defendant routinely discouraged, impeded and/or prevented Plaintiff and
proposed subclasses, and in fact, knew or should have reasonably known that Plaintiff and
proposed subclasses were working during their rest petiods; however, Deferidant did not take
steps to address the situation,

49.  As a resull of Defendant’s failure to provide rest periods, Plaintiff and proposed
subclasses are entitled to recover one additional hour of pay at the Plaintiff’s or member’s
regular rate of pay for each work day that a rest period was not provided, as well, as statutory

interest, attorneys’ fees and costs.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

FAILURE TO PROVIDE TIMELY .

STATEMENTS

(ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF, FORMER EMPLOYEE WAGE. STATEMENT

SUBCLASS AND CURRENT EMPLOYEE WAGE STATEMENT SUBCLASS)
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

50.  Plaintiff on behalf of herself, Former Employee Wage Statement Subclass and |
Current Employee Wage Statement Subclass, allege this third cause of action, and incorporate
by reference and re-allege cach and every paragraph of this Complaint as though fully set forth;

51.  California Labor Code §226(a) reads as follows:

(a) An employer, semimonthly or at the time of each payment of wages, shall
furnish to his or her employee, either as a detachable patt of the check, draft, or
voucher paying the employee’s wages, or sepamtely if wages are paid by personal
check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in wiiting showing (1) gross wages

earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee (3) the number of piece-rate units
earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee is paid on a piece-rate basis,
(4) alt deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the
employee may be aggregated and shown as one itetn, (5) net wages earned, (6) the

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR: DAMAGES - 17
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E ICIUSivE dAtes o7 The period for which the employee 1s paid, (7) the name of the
5 einployee and only the last four digits of his or her social security num})er or an
employee identification number other than a social security number, (8) the name
3 and address of the legal entity that is the employer.
4 52.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses re-allege that they have been denied lawfully
i due overtime compensation because of Defendant’s failure to include the leasing bonus in
: computing the regular rate on which overtime pay must be based; thus each paycheck stub
g |[which includes an incorrect overtime rate and incorrect overtime calculation js an inaccurate
9 || statement,
10 53.  Plaintiff and proposed subclasses allege that Defendant failed to provide sick.
H v leave accrual information on each paystub or on a document issued the same day as the
i: | paycheck in accordance with Labor Code §246.
14 54, Defendant’s failure to correctly calculate Plaintiffs and proposed subclasses’
15 1l overtime rate and overtime calculation resulted in provision of an inaccurate wage statement, in
L8l that (1) all applicable Liourly rates in effect during each respective pay period, (2) the number of
i: hours wotked, (3) gross wages eaned, and; (4) net wages earned are incorrect,
19 55.  Plaintiff, Former Employee Wage Statement Subclass and Current Employeev
z0 (| Wage Statement Subclass allege to and have suffered actual harm as a result of Defendant’s
21 |l knowing and intentional violation of the Califomia Labor Code as it pertains to provision of
2 timely and accurate wage statements. As such, they will seek to. recover the “greater of all actual
22 damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period in which a violation oceurs and one
25 || mndred dollars ($100) per emplayee for each violation in a subsequent pay period, not to
26 || exceed an aggregate penalty of four thousand doltars ($4,000)" and, reasonable attorneys’ fees
27 and costs.
28 §

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 18
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| ———FOUKTH CAUSE OF ACTION

computing the regular rate on which overtime pay must be based.

reqiisite additional hour of pay {for missed rest periods] caused Plaintiff and proposed subclass
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NSATION DUE AND PAYABLE UPON

FAILURE TO PAY ALL COMPE

(ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF AND I‘ORMER EMPLOYEE
WAITING TIME SUBCLASS)
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

56.  Plaintiff on behaif of herself and Former Employee Waiting Time Subclass
allege this fourth cause of action, and incorporate by reference and re-allege each and every:
paragraph of this Complaint as though fully set forth:

57.  Labor Code §201 and §202 requires that all employees receive all earned and
unpaid wages at the time of termination of employment, either immediately upon discharge or
within- the required time frame upon resignation.

58.  Plaintiff and proposed subclass re-allege that they have been denied lawfully due

overtime compensation because of Defendant’s failure to include the leasing bonus in
p g

59.  Plaintiff and proposed subclass re-allege that they have been denied lawfully due
rest periods, thus.Defendant owed Plaintiff and proposed subclass one additional hour of pay at
his/her regular rate to be paid no later than the next paycheck.

60.  Defendant’s willful failure to provide accurate overtime compensation and/or the

to not receive all earned and unpaid wages at the time of termination of employment, cither
immediately upon discharge or within the required time frame upon resignation.
61.  As aresult of Defendant’s failure to pay all earned and unpaid wages at the time

of termination of and/or resignation from employment, Plaintiff and praoposed subclass are

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -9
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fees and costs.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

BY PLAINTIIT ALL FORMER EMPLOYLE CLASSES AND
ALY CURRENT EMPLOYEE CLASSES
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

62.  Plaintiff, all Former Employee Classes and all Current Employee Classes allege
this fifth cause of action, and incorporate by reference each and every paragraph of this
Complaint as though fully set forth, except those paragraphs which are inconsistent with this
cause of action:

63.  Plaintiff, all Forimer Employee Classes and all Current Employee. Classes are
informed and reasonably believe that Defendant has engaged in unfair business practices in
California by adopting employment practices in direct violation of California common and
statutory law,

64.  Plaintiff, all Former Employee Classes and all Cutrent Employee Classes are
informed and reasonably believe that Defendant has committed deceptive, unlawful, unfair and
fraudulent business practices which have deprived Plaintiff, all Former Employee Classes and
alt Current Employee Classes of money or property in violation of California Business and
Professions Code § 17200 et seq. Violations have occurred by Defendant’s failure to pay
ovettime wages, failure to provide rest periods, failure to pay all eammed and payable wages
upon termination of employment and failure to provide timely and accurate wage statements.

65.  Plaintiff, all Former Empioyeef Classes and all Current Employee Classes are

informed and reasonably believe that they are entitled to and do seek a declaration that the

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 20
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relief restraining Defendant from engaging in any such future business practices.

66.  As a result of Defendant’s unlawful and unfair business practices, Plaintiff, ail
Former Employee Classes and all Curtent Employee Classes seek disgorgement of monies and
full restitution, as necessary and atlowable, to restore any and all monies withheld, acquired
and/or converted by the Defendant by means of the unfair practices outlined herein. This
includes seeking statutory interest, as well as attorneys’ fees.and costs.

_ SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ERIVATE ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT, CLAIM FOR CIVIL, PENALTIES
(BY PLAINTIFF ON BEHALF OF ALL FORMER EMPLOYEE CLASSES AND
ALL CURRENT EMPLOYEE CLASSES)
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

67.  Plaintiff on behalf of herself and all Former Employee Classes and all Curient
Employee Classes allege this sixth cauge of action, and incmpor;tte by reference and re-dllege
each and every paragraph of this Complaint as though fully set forth:

68.  California Labor Code §§2698 er seq., allows for the Labor Workforce
Development Agency to act on behalf of aggrieved employees and to recover civil penalties on
behalf of the aggrieved employees, other employces and the State of California for Labor Code
violations.

69.  Plaintiff has been subjected to Defendant's numerous violations of California
statutory and common laws, including but not timited to violation of California Labor Code
§§201-204, 226 et seq., 246, 1194, and ILW.C. Wage Order No. 4-2001, thus Plaintiff is
informed and reasonably believes herself to quality as aggrieved employees.

70.  Plaintiff as an aggrieved employee perform[ed] work for Defendant violator and

had one or more alleged violations committed against her, and therefore is adequately placed to

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 21




@ase 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO Document 1-5 Filed 03/12/18 Page 24 of 32

represent th‘e.jntw.:e&t.a&alhoﬁmmaggﬂe#ed-cmuymmm'_ Ofmer Employee Class

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

members and Current Employee Class members.

71.  Plaintiff seeks to recover the PAGA civil penalties through a representative
action permitted under the California Labor Code §§2699(a), 2699.3 and 2699.5, in addition to
other remedies for violations of Labor Code §226 and other Labor Code violations which have
been outlined in this Complaint. |

72.  Califorsia Labor Code §2698 et seq., imposes a civil penalty upon violators of
one hundred dollars ($100) per pay period, for each aggrieved. employee for each initial
violation and two lundred dollars ($200) for each agprieved .employee per pay period for each
subsequent violations.

73.  Plaintiffs’ PAGA claims do not require class certification; however, Plaintiff
may choose to seek certification of the PAGA claims.

74. On November 17, 2017, Plaintiff provided the Labor Workforce and
Development Agency (“LWDA™) written notice of the alleged claims through the Agency's
online claim notice; duplicate notice was serit to Defendant by certified mail with return receipt,
atlaciicd,llct'cto collectively referred to as EXHIBIT A.

75, Atthe time of filing this Complaint, the LWDA has not responded to Plaintiffs
and/or has chosen not to investigate the claims; thereby allowing for this action to commence

pursuant to California Labor Code §2699 ef seq.

"PLAINTIFE'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 22
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|l a “right to sue” letter. True and correct copies of the administrative coniplaint and/or the “right

. = - SEVENFII-CAUSE'OF ACTION
UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION BASED UPON SEX
(BY PLAINTIFF)

‘ (AGAINST DEFENDANT)
76.  Plaintiff Jessica Barrios, on behalf of herself, alleges this seventh cause of action,
and incorporate by reference and re-alleges each and every paragraph of this Complaint as
though fully set forth:

77.  Ms. Bamios, prior to the initiation of this lawsuit, filed a complaint against each

named Defendant with the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (“DEEH")

pursuant to California Government Code §12900, et seg. On January 25, 2018, the DFEH issued

to sue” letter are attached hereto collectively referred to as EXHIBIT B. All conditions
precedent to the institution of this lawsuit have been fulfilled. This action is filed within one
year of the date that the DFEH issued its rights to sue letter.

78.  Defendant discriminated against Ms. Barrios on the basis of sex in violation oL
FEHA through numerous illegal acts due to her gender, pregnancy, pregnancy-relatedl
medical condition{s], childbirth and breastfeeding.

79.  In or around April 20(6, it became known to Karina de la Torre, Regional
Manager for APM that Ms. Barrios was pregnant. At the current time, Ms. Barrios was assigned
by Ms. de la Toire as an acting Assistant Community Director or Community Director at
Defendant’s apartment-home complex in Stanislaus County.

80.  Ms. de la Torre acknowledged directly to Ms. Bartios that she had the requisite
experience and skills to work as an Assistant Commnuinity Director or Comnmnity Director;

however did not provide her with comparable cotnpensation or perinanent employment in the

PLAINTIFE'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 23
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position-as. -Ms:- Barrios™~male- counterpuiis~or~other—néfizdisabled (i, not prégnant or
breastfeeding) female employees.

8. In_ or around August 2016, Ms. Barrios became aware that a permanent
Comnunity Director position was available at Sierra Oaks in Turlock, California and expressed
interest in the promotional oppottunity to Ms. de la Torre,

82.  Between Aungust 2016 and January 2017, Ms. de la Torre expressed to Ms.
Barrios and at times in front of others, that Ms. Barrios® disability due to pregnancy and
| anticipated pregnancy disability leave of abscnce [which ovcured from October 1, 2016
through January 16, 2017) would bar her from considering Ms, Barrios for the promotion;
[ however, if she was not pregnant oi- was not anticipating taking a pregnancy disability leave of
absence, she would be Ms. de la Torre’s first choice.

83.  Deféndant through Ms. de 1a Totre or any other representative of APM, did_not“
promote Ms. Barrios to a permanent managerial position at any time during or subsequently
‘thereafter her pregnancy ended and/or us;s of protected leave time, d‘espite the vacancy in
positions at Sierra 6aks, in Turlock and The Pahns, in Stockton.

84,  Defendant promoted Monica Tavares, # substantially less experienced, non-
disabled (i.e., not pregnant) female to the Community Director position at Sierra Qaks in or
around November 2017.

85.  Defendant hired David Duncan, a male as the Community Director position at
The Palms in or atound Maich 2017; consideration for his hire occurred during the time that
Ms. Barrios was continuing to care for her infant child and expressing milk.

86.  Defendant hired Mr. Duncan to perform substantially similar work as Ms.

Barrios was assigned and undertook while pregnant [before taking protected leave of absence];

PLAINTIFE'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 24
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violation of Labor Code § 1197.5).

however, Defendant compensated.Mr.. Rduncan- approximately-$65:000 (exclusive of bonus) per'

b

yeat for such work; an amount apptoximately tiwo (2) times Ms. Barrios® compensation (in-

87.  Ms. Barrios has personal knowledge and/or reasonable belief that Ms. de la Torre
ltad received disciplinary coaching from Deferidant’s corporate office which pertained to or
limited Ms. de la Torre’s consideration of reasonable accommadation requests for the personal
and/or medical needs of subordinate employees, thereby justifying her lack of consideration of
Ms. Barrios in permanent (i.e., not temporary or acting), managerial position.

88.  As a proximate result of the conduct of Defendant, Ms. Batvios has suffered
datnages in terms of lost wages, lost bonuses, lost benefits, and other pecuniary loss according
to proof. Ms. Barrios has also suffered and will contimie to suffer physical and emotional
injuries, including humiliation, anguish, embarrassment and auxiety. The amount of Plaintiff
Batrios’ damages will be ascertained at teial,

89, In committing the foregoing acts, Defendant lias been guilty of oppression, fraud
-and/or malice under Code of Civil Procedure §-3294, thereby entitling Plaintiff Barrios to
punitive damages in a sum appropriate to punish and make an example out of the foregoing
Defendant.

90.  The act of oppression, fraud and/or malice were engaged in by employee[s] of
Defendant. Defendant had advance knowledge of the unfitness of at least Ms. de la Totve and/oi
ratified her wrongful conduct for which an award of punitive damages is sought and/for
individually oppressed Ms. Barrios. The advance knowledge and conscious disregard,
authotization, ratification or act of oppression, fraud, and/or malice was committed by or on the

part of an officer, director, or agent of Defendant, thereby entitling Ms. Barrios to punitive and

'PLANTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 25
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exemplary-damages-against Defendant iirasmmappTopriate to punish and make an example of
Defendant.

91.  FEHA provides for an award of reasonable attorneys® fees and costs incmred by
a prevailing Plaintiff in an action brought under its provisions. Ms. Barrios has employed and
will continue to employ attorneys for this action.

92.  Ms. Barrios has been generally damaged in an amount within the jurisdictional

limits of this Coutt.

WRONGFUL TERI\?%I?E%‘I%S?E 'S\/l?ig&él'clgkogh‘ PUBLIC POLICY
(BY PLAINTIFF)
(AGAINST DEFENDANT)

93. Plaintiff Jessica Bairios, on Eehalf of herself, alleges this eight cause of action,
and incorporate by reference and rle-alleges each and every paragraph of this Complaint as
though fully set forth:

94.  Defendant APM terminated Ms. Barrios’ employment in violation of important
and well-established public policies, as set forth in various state statutes and Constitutional
provisions including but not limited to FEHA and Califotnia Constitution Article 1, section 8
which reads a person may not be disqualified from entering or pursuing a business, profession,
vocation, or employment because of sex, race, creed, color, ot national or ethnic origin.

95.  On or around October 20, 2017, Ms. Barrios contacted Defendant’s Hurnan
Resources Manager, Tesha Gatewcod to again inform her of perceived and actual

discriminatory and/or retaliatory conduct of Defendant’s onsite manager[s], Monica Tavares
¥ b 2

and Raquel Johnpeer.,

PLAINTIFE'S COMPLATNT FOR DAMAGES - 2§
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|| pecuniary loss according to proof. Ms. Baitios has also suffered and will continue to suffer

an award of punitive damages is sought and/or individually oppressed Ms. Barrios. The advance

described was in fact discriminatory and/or retaliatory; however, failed to investigate the matter:
faiied to follow up with Ms. Barrios as to the outcome of an.investigation, if any; and allowed
the termination to remain in effect,

97.  Asaproximate result of the conduct of Defendant, Ms. Barrios has suffered and

will contimue to suffer damages in terms of lost wages, lost bonuses, lost benefits, and other

physical and emotioial injuries, including humiliation, anguish, embarrassment and anxiety.
The amount of Ms. Barrios’ damages will be ascertained at trial.

98.  In committing the foregoing acts, Defendant has been guilty of oppression, fraud
and/or malice under Code of Civil Procedure §3294, thereby entitling Plaintiff Barrios to
punitive damages in a sum appropriate to punish and make an example out of the foregoing
Defendant,

99.  The act of oppression, fraud and/or malice were engaged in by employee[s] of
Defendant. Defendant had advance knowledge of the unfitness of at least Ms. Monica Tavares,

Ms. Tesha Gatewood and Ms. Raquel Johnpeer and/or ratified theii wrongful conduct for which

knowledge and conscious disregerd, authorization, ratification or act of oppression, frand,
and/or malice was committed by or on the part of an officer, director, or agent of Defendant,
thereby entitling Ms, Barrios to punitive and exemplary damages against Defendant in a sum

appropriate to punish and make an example of Défendant.

PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 27
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100 .FEHA provides foi ait awird of réasoRable atforneys” teés and costs incurred by
a prevailing Plaintiff in an action brought under its provisions, Ms. Battios has employed and
will continue to employ attorneys foi this action,

101. Ms. Barrios has been generally damaged in an amount within the jurisdictional

limits of this Couut.

V. PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Plaintiff on behalf of herself and members of all Classes pray for judgment as indicated and
outlined above in Paragraphs 30 through 101 and as follows:
a. Certification of Plaintiff's claims (on behalf of and those pertaining. to all.
Classes) that this action may proceed and be maintained as a class action;
b. Class notice to all California based individuals in positions, job titles, job codes
or job descriptions of maintenance technician, maintenance supen;isor, leasing agent, |
conmumumity consultant, bookkeeper, assistant manager, manager, assistant commun'ity
director, community director and other similar nomenclature performing substantiaily
identical functions and/or duties who Defendant classified as nonexempt based on company
records; who were formerly employed by Defendant; who worked within the time period
from four (4) years preceding the filing of this Complaint, up to and through the time of
conunencement of trial for this matter.,;
c. A declaratory judgment that Defendant's policies and/or practices violated the
California Labor Code and/or applicable LW.C. Wage Order(s] for causes of action one

through seven.

PLAINTI'F'S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - Zg
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d. —A dectaratory judgment thai Defendants” policés and/or business practices as
outlined in causcs of action. one through six, constituted deceptive, un tawful, unfair and/or
fraudulent business practices in violation of California’s unfair competition Jaws.

e. Injunctive relief, albeit preliminaty or permanent enjoining Defendant from
engaging in the aforementioned and alleged unlawful practices.

f An award to Plaintiff, the Former Overtimc Subclass and Current Overtime
Subclass of damages for the amount of unpaid overtime compensation, including interest
thereon and penalties subject to proof at trial;

g An award to Plaintiff, the Former Rest Period Subclass and the Current Rest
Period Subclass of damages for the aiiount of one additional hour of pay at the regular rate
of compensation for each workday that mandatory rest periods were not provided, including
interest thereon;

h. An awaid to Plaintiff, the Former Wage Statement Subclass and the Current
Wage Statement Subclass of damages for failure to provide timely and accurate itemized
wadges statements;

i. An award tc Plaintiff, the Former Waiting Time Subclass for waiting time
penalties for any and all failure to timely remit compensation of all carned and payable
wages upon termination of employment, either by discharge or resignation;

i3 An award to Plaintiff , and all Classes for all civil penalties permitted by the
PAGA, subject to the Court’s discretion;

k. An award of punitive damages to Plaintiff for Defendant’s violation of
discrimination laws.

L. Interest accrued and due pursuant to the California Labor Code;

"PLAINTIFF*S COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - 29
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T m. . Restitution (6 the Plamtit, and all Classes purstant to. the applicable 1W.C7|~
2 Wage Order(s);
3 .
. Restitution to the Plaintiff, and all Classes pursuant to the Califoraia Labor Code,
" : _
s the California Business and Professions Code and all other applicable laws;
6 0. An award to Plaintiff, and all Classes for their attomeys® fees and costs of suit to
7 the extent permitted by law;
8 . .
p. All other relief as the Court may deern proper.
9
10
11
12 DATED THIS __th OF _Fébruary 2018
13
14 pern
: Y B ) .
16 Law-Office of Thomas P. Hogar
- Thomas P. Hogan
| Shawnté Priest
18 . ,
Law Offices of Scott A. Miller, APC
19 -Scott A. Miller
25 Bonnie Fong
| Attorneys for Plaintiff and proposed Class Members
21
22
24
25
26
27
28
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EXHIBIT C



Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO

Pay Statement: 2015 - 51- 1

Perlod Beginning Date

American Property Management
12/1/2015

110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550
Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios
1204 Cindy Ave
Modesto, CA 95350

Petiod Ending Date
12/15/2015

Document 1-7

Pay Date
12/21/2015

WGPS Advance Pay Date

| Gross Pay
i Regutar Rate: 16.5000
i Overtime Rate: 24.7500

| Bonus (field 3)

Taxes
Federal Income Tax

Social Security

i

E Medicare

i State Worked In: California Code: CA
| SUISDIL: California (Taxing) Code: 75

} Deductions

401 - 401K DEDUCTION

MED - MEDICAL

Take Home
] CHECKING1
Other Details
Memos
Hours Worked

Max Elig/comp

Filed 03/12/18

Co. Clock

cbc C

File # Number

000819 C0510077
Hours: 88.00
Hours: 1.50

Page 2 of 12

Home Dept
667500

$1,900.13
$ 1,452.00
$37.13

$411.00

$243.05
$21.62
$115.88
$27.10
$61.63

$16.82

$88.19
$57.00

$31.19

$1,568.89

$1,568.89

89.50

1,900.13
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Pay Statement: 2016 - 1-1

American Property Management  Perlod Beglnning Date Pay Date Co. Clock Home Dept
110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 12/16/2015 1512016 cbc c 667500
Bellevue, WA 98004
Jessica L Barrios Perled Endihg Date WGPS Advance Pay Date File # Number Worked In Dept
1904 Cindy Ave 12/31/2015 000819 00010075 667500
Modesto, CA 95350
l' Gross Pay $ 1,584.00
:' Regutar Rate: 16.5000 Hours: 76.00 $ 1,254.00
_l Holiday (field 3) Rate: 16.5000 Hours: 8.00 $132.00
E
i Sick {field 3} Rate: 16.5000 Houirs: 8.00 $132.00
E
i Vacation (field 3} Rate: 16.5000 Hours: 4.€0 $66.00
L
I Taxes $173.35
: Social Security $96.25
: Medicare $22.51
State Worked In: California Code: CA $40.62
i’ sUKSDL California (Taxing) Code: 75 $13.97
| Deductions $79.16

401 - 401K DEDUCTION $47.52
MED - MEDICAL $31.64
Take Home $1,331.49
CHECKING1 $1,331.49

Qther Details

Memos
Hours Warked 76.00

Max Elig/comp 1,584.00
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Pay Statement: 2016 - 2 -1

American Property Maragement  Period Beginning Date Pay Date Co. Clock Home Dept
110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 1712016 1/20/2016 coC Cc 667500
Bellevue, WA 98004
Jessica L Barrios Petiod Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date Flle # Number
1904 Cindy Ave 115/2016 000819 00020077
Modesto, CA 95350
; Gross Pay $ 2,529.01
?: Regutar Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 69.25 $ 1,24650
;( Overtime Rate: 27.0000 Hours: 0,75 $ 2025
r Bonus {field 3) $929.26
Hollday (field 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 8.00 $ 144,00
i Vacation {field 3} Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 10.50 $ 189.00
i
if' Taxes $430.39
i Federal Income Tax $102.06
| Soctal Security $ 154.83
: Medicare $36.21
State Worked In: California Code: CA $114.81
SUI/SDI: Californla (Taxing) Code: 75 $ 2248
Deductions $107.51
i 401 - 401K DEDUCTION $ 7587
MED - MEDICAL $31.64
Take Home $1991.11
CHECKING 1 $1,991.11

Qther Details

Memos
Hours Worked 70.00

Max Elig/comp 2,529.01



- Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO

Pay Statement; 2016 - 5 - 1

Perlod Beglnning Date

American Property Management
1116/2016

110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550
Bellevue, WA 98004

Perlod Ending Date
31,2016

Jessica L Barrios
1904 Cindy Ave
Modesto, CA 95350

Document 1-7

Pay Date
2/512016

WGPS Advance Pay Date

[ Gross Pay

I

{ Regular Rate: 18.0000
I3 Overtime Rate: 27.0000
£

%

Il Taxes

Soclat Security

Medicare
State Worked In: California Code: CA
SUI/SDI: California (Taxing) Code: 75

' Deductions

401 - 401K DEDUCTION

MED - MEDICAL

Take Home
CHECKING1
ther Details
Memos
Hours Worked

Max Elig/comp

Filed 03/12/18 Page 5 of 12

Co. Clock
<oC C

Home Dept
667500

Flle #
000819

Number
00050069

Warked In Dept
667500

$1.611.00
Hours: 88.00 $ 1,584 .00

Hours: 1.00 $27.00

$177.38
$97.92
$22.90
$42.35

$ 14.21

$79.97
$48.33

$31.64

$1,353.65

$ 1,353.65

89.00

1,611.00
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Pay Statement: 2016 -7 - 1

American Property Managemen! Period Beginning Date Pay Date Co. Clock Home Dept
110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 21172016 219/2016 cDC C GG75G0
Bellevue, WA 98004
Jessica L Barrios Period Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date File # Number
1904 Cindy Ave 2/15/2016 000819 00070072
Moclesto, CA 95350
['r Gross Pay $2,081.67
.i Regular Rate; 18.0000 Hours: 56.00 $ 1,008.00
i Overtime Rate: 27.0000 Hours: 1.75 $47.25
; Bereavement (field 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 8.00 % 144.00
,if Borus (fleld 3) $594.42
fl" Vacation (field 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 16.00 $ 288.00
K
| Taxes $287.94
| Federal Income Tax $37.52
il Social Security $127.11
X Medicare $29.73
|’i State Worked In: California Code: CA $7513
| SUYSDI California (Taxing) Code: 75 $18.45
b
9 Deductions $94.09
401 - 401K DEDUCTION $62.45
MED - MEDICAL $31.64
Take Home $ 1,699.64
CHECKING1 $ 1,699.64

Other Details
Memos
Hours Worked 5775

Max Elig/comp 2,081.67
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Pay Statement; 2016 - 9 -1

American Property Management Perlod Beginning Date Pay Date Co. Clock Home Dept

110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 2/16/2016 3/4/2016 CcDC o} 667500
Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios Perlod Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date File # Number Worked (n Dept
1904 Cindy Ave 2/29/2016 [ola]e;:] 1] 00090073 667500

Modesto, CA 95350

' Gross Pay $1,451.25
i Regular Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 63.50 $1,143.00
: Overtime Rate; 27.0000 Hours: .75 $20.25
| Personal (fleld 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 8.00 $144.00
i Sick (field 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 8.00 $ 144.00
{ Taxes $153.84
I Social Security % 88.01
Medicare $20.58
. State Worked In: California Code: CA $32.47
I SUI/SDI: California (Texing} Code: 75 $12.78
: Deductions $75.18
401 - 401K DEDUCTION $43.54

MED - MEDICAL $31.64

Take Home $122223
CHECKING 1 $122223

Other Details
Memaos
Hours Worked 64.25

Max Elig/comp 1,451.25
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Pay Statement: 2016 - 11 -1

American Proper[y Management Perlod Beginning Date Pay Date Co, Clock Home Dept
110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 31206 372172016 cDC (& 667500
Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios Perlad Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date File # Number

1904 Cindy Ave 315/2016 000819 cclio076

Modesto, CA 95350

. Gross Pay $2,382.93
,-l Regular Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 79.75 $1,435.50
i" Overtime Rate: 27.5000 Hours: 1.00 $27.00
j Bonus (field 3) $ 77643
i Vacation {fleld 3) Rate: 18.0000 Haurs: 8.00 $ 14400
=
" Taxes $382.68
[ Federal Income Tax $80.80
j Social Security $145.78
Ii ‘ Medicare $34.10
i‘ State Worked In: California Code: CA $100.84
.;E SUI/SDL: California (Taxing) Code: 75 $21.16
Deductions $103.13
401 - 401K DEDUCTION $71.49
MED - MEDICAL $3164
Take Home $1,897.12
CHECKING1 $1.897.12

Other Details

Memos
Hours Worked 80.75

Max Elig/comp 2,382.93
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Pay Statement: 2016 - 13 - 1

Perlod Beglnning Date

American Property Management
3/16/2016

110 110th Ave NE, Sulte 550
Bellevue, WA 98004

Perlod Ending Date
3/3V2016

Jessica L Barrios
1904 Cindy Ave
Modesto, CA 95350

Gross Pay
Regular
Bonus (field 3)

Sick {field 3)

el e T —

Taxes
Federal Income Tax
Social Security
Medicare
State Worked In: California

Code: CA

SUI/SDI: Caiifornia (Taxing) Code: 75

| Deductions
| 401-401K DEDUCTION

MED - MEDICAL

| Take Home
CHECKING1
Other Details
Memos
Hours Worked

Max Elig/comp

Document 1-7

Pay Date
4/8.2006

WGPS Advance Pay Date

Rate: 1B8.0000

Rate: 18.0000

Filed 03/12/18 Page 9 of 12

Co. Clock Home Dept
cDC C 667500
Flle # Number Worked In Dept
000818 00130075 667500

Hours: 95.00

Hours: 1.00

$ 1,928.00
$1,710.00
$ 200.00

$18.00

$247.40
$22.62
$117.58
$ 27.49
$62.64

$17.07

$89.48
$57.84

$31.64

$1,591.12

$1,591.12

95.00

1,.928.00



Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO

Pay Statement: 2016 - 16 - 1

American Property Management
10 110th Ave NE, Suite 550
Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios
1904 Cindy Ave
Modesto, CA 95350

f Gross Pay

’ Reguiar

1 Overtime

E Bonus {field 3)

I Personal (field 3}

H

| Total Hours Worked:; 0
!

- Taxes

| Federal Income Tax

i Seclal Security
Medicare

State Worked In: Californla

SUI/SDI: California {Taxing)

' Deductions

401 - 401K DEDUCTION

MED - MEDICAL

Take Home
CHECKING1
Other Details
Memos
Hours Worked

Max Elig/comp

Document 1-7

Perlad Beglnning Date Pay Date
412016 4/20/2016
Period Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date

4415/2016

Rate: 18,0000

Rate: 27.000C

Rate: 18,0000

Code: CA

Code: 75

Filed 03/12/18 Page 10 of 12

Co. Clock Horne Dept
coe Cc 66050C
File # Number
000819 00160040

Hours: 80.00

Hours: 0.25

Hours: 8.00

$2,216.86
$1,440.00
$6.75
$626.11

$144.00

$330.14
$56.64
$135.48
$3169
$86.67

$19.66

$98.156
$66.51

$31.64

$1,788.57

$1,788.57

80.25

2,216.86



Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO

Pay Statement: 2016 - 18 - 1

American Property Management
110 110th Ave NE, Sulte 550
Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios
1904 Cindy Ave
Modesta, CA 85350

Gross Pay
Regular

| Overtime

! Bonus (field 3}

I sickifield3)

Total Hours Worked: 0

Taxes

Federal Income Tax

i'
l
:
|

Social Security
Medicare
State Worked In: California

SUI/SOI: California (Taxing)

Deductions
401 - 401K DEDUCTION

MED - MEDICAL

Take Home
CHECKING1
Other Detalls
Memos
Hours Worked

Max Elig/comp

Document 1-7

Period Baglnning Date Pay Date
4/16/2016 5/5/2016
Perlod Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date

4/30/2016

Rate: 18.00C0

Rate: 27.0000

Rate: 18.0000

Code: CA

Code: 75

Filed 03/12/18 Page 11 of 12

Co.
cbC

File #

000819

Clock Home Dept
8 660500

Number
00180039

$1,797.50
Hours: 82.50 $ 1,485.00
Hours: 0.50 $13.50
$200.00

Hours: 5,50 $99.00

$215.23
$9.95
$109.48
$ 25.60
$54.29

$ 15,90

$85.57
$53.93

$31.64

$ 1,496.70

$1.496.70

83.00

1,787.50
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Pay Statement: 2016 - 20 - 1

American Property Managefment  Perlod Beginning Date Pay Date Ca. Clock Home Dept

110 110th Ave NE, Suite 550 Br1/2016 512012016 <pe c 660500

Bellevue, WA 98004

Jessica L Barrios Period Ending Date WGPS Advance Pay Date Flie # Number

1904 Cindy Ave 5/15/2016 0C0819 00200039

Modesto, CA 95350
| Gross Pay $2,189.36
4 Regular Rate: 18.0000 Hours: 71,75 $1,291.50
|
| Overlime Rate: 27.0000 Hours: 1.00 $27.00
|
b Bonus (field 3) $726.86
3 Vacation (field 3) Rate: 18.0000 Hours: B.0O $ 144.00

Total Hours Worked: 0

Taxes $321.44

s Federal Income Tax $52.64
I

; Social Security $133.78

Medicare $31.29

: State Worked In: California Code; CA $84.31

: 1 SUI/SDI: California (Taxing) Code: 75 $19.42

| Deductions $97.33

401 - 401K DEDUCTION $65.69
MED - MEDICAL $31.64
| Take Home $ 1,770.59
CHECKING 1 $1,770.59

Other Detaiis
Memos
Hours Worked 72.75

Max Elig/comp 2,189.36
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LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP
DEREK S. SACHS, SB# 253990

E-Mail: Derek.Sachs@lewisbrisbois.com
ASHLEY N. ARNETT, SB# 305162

E-Mail: Ashley. Arnett@lewisbrisbois.com
2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700
Sacramento, California 95833
Telephone: 916.564.5400
Facsimile: 916.564.5444

Attorneys for Defendant American Property
Management, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

JESSICA BARRIOS, individually and on CASE NO.
behalf of all other similarly situated,
DEFENDANT AMERICAN PROPERTY
Plaintiffs, MANAGEMENT, INC.’S
CERTIFICATION AND NOTICE OF

Vs. INTERESTED PARTIES

AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
INC. and DOES 1 through 10 inclusive,

Defendants. Action Filed: February 9, 2018
Trial Date: None Set

Pursuant to Local Rule 7.1-1, the undersigned, counsel of record for Defendant American

Property Management, Inc. certifies that the following listed parties may have a pecuniary interest
in the outcome of this case. These representations are made to enable the Court to evaluate
possible disqualification or recusal.
PARTIES CONNECTION
1. Jessica Barrios Plaintiff
2. American Property Management, Inc. Defendant
3. American Capital Group Parent Company of Defendant
4. Law Office of Thomas P. Hogan Plaintiff’s Counsel
5. Law Offices of Scott A. Miller, APC Plaintiff’s Counsel
1/
1
4827-6715-2735.1 1

DEFENDANT AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC.’S CERTIFICATION AND NOTICE OF
INTERESTED PARTIES
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o

6. Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith, LLP Defendant’s Counsel

DATED: March ¢ ,2018 LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

Ashley N. Arnett
Attorneys for Defendant, American Property
Management, Inc.
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4827-6715-2735.1 2

DEFENDANT AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC.’S CERTIFICATION AND NOTICE OF
INTERESTED PARTIES
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15 44 (Rev. 06/17) CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supg}ement the ﬁlin% and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

!!e@cé) MM IFFS AREFJ%NB%B‘% Management, Inc.

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ Stanislaus County County of Residence of First Listed Defendant _King County, Washington

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN US. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

] Attorngys (If Known,
L RIS TN Ay Telephone Number) Derek § ‘Sachs SB# 253990/Ashley N. Amett SB#305162
Thomas Hogan, SB# 95055/Shawnte Priest, SN# 288460 2020 West El Camino Ave, Suite 700
1207 13th Street, Suite [, Modesto, California 95354 Sacramento, California 95811
II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an "X in One Box Only) II1. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an "X in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
0O 1 U.S. Government 3 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Parsy) Citizen of This State X1 O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 04
of Business In This State
3 2 U.S. Govemment A 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State 0 2 0O 2 Incorporated and Principal Place os5 &s
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item II]) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a O 3 3 3 Foreign Nation o6 0O6
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (riace an "X" in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
l CONTRACT TORTS FORFETTUREFINALLY | BANKRUPICY | GURGRSTATUTeS ]
O 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |0 625 Drug Related Seizure 0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
3 120 Marine O 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 | O 423 Withdrawal 0 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act O 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3725(a))
3 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 0 367 Health Care/ O 400 State Reapportionment
O 150 Recovery of Overpayment |3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical [ PROPERTY RIGHTS |0 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury O 820 Copyrights O 430 Banks and Banking
3 151 Medicare Act 0 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability O 830 Patent O 450 Commerce
O 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability O 368 Asbestos Personal O 835 Patent - Abbreviated O 460 Deportation
Student Loans O 340 Marine Injury Product New Drug Application |3 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) 0O 345 Marine Product Liability — J 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations
3 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY = ]O 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits O 350 Motor Vehicle 0 370 Other Fraud 0 710 Fair Labor Standards O 861 HIA (1395f1) O 490 Cable/Sat TV
O 160 Stockholders’ Suits 0 355 Motor Vehicle O 371 Truth in Lending Act O 862 Black Lung (923) 0O 850 Securities/Commodities/
3 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal 0O 720 Labor/Management 0 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) Exchange
O 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations O 864 SSID Title XVI O 890 Other Statutory Actions
O 196 Franchise Injury 3 385 Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 8 865 RSI (405(g)) O 891 Agricultural Acts
O 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability O 751 Family and Medical O 893 Environmental Matters
Medical Malpractice Leave Act 3 895 Freedom of Information
l REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETI ﬁOES (X 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
O 210 Land Condemnation O 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: O 791 Employee Retirement O 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 0 896 Arbitration
O 220 Foreclosure O 441 Voting O 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act or Defendant) O 899 Administrative Procedure
O 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment O 442 Empioyment O 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
T 240 Torts to Land O 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 0 530 General 0 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 All Other Real Property O 445 Amer. w/Disabilities -] 3 535 Death Penalty WIEEAHON State Statutes
' Employment Other: 0O 462 Naturalization Application
03 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 3 540 Mandamus & Other |3 465 Other Immigration
Other O 550 Civil Rights Actions
3 448 Education 0 555 Prison Condition
O 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement
V. ORIGIN (Piace an “X” in One Box Only}
01 Original X2 Removed from 0 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstatedor O 5 Transferred from O 6 Multidistrict O 8 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Court Appeltate Court Reopened Another District Litigation - Litigation -
(specify) Transfer Direct File
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity).

28 USC 1441(b)
Brief description of cause: .
Class action alleging wage and hour violations, unlawful business practices,& wrongful termination/discrimination

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VII. REQUESTED IN ™ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND § CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, FR.Cv.P. JURY DEMAND: M Yes ONo
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DATE
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CALIFORNIA STATE COURT PROOF OF SERVICE

Barrios v American Property Management - Case No. 2028910
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

At the time of service, I was over 18 years of age and not a party to the action. My
business address is 2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95833.

On March 12, 2018, I served the following document(s): NOTICE OF REMOVAL TO
FEDERAL COURT;

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION UNDER 28 U.S.C. SECTION 1441(b)
[DIVERSITY OF CITIZENSHIP];

DECLARATION OF DEREK S. SACHS IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT'S NOTICE
OF REMOVAL;

DECLARATION OF BROOKE ANDERSEN IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT
AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL
ACTION TO UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT;

DEFENDANT AMERICAN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC.'S CERTIFICATE
AND NOTICE OF INTERESTED PARTIES; and

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET

[ served the documents on the following persons at the following addresses (including fax
numbers and e-mail addresses, if applicable):

Thomas P. Hogan, Esq.

Shawnte Priest, Esq.

LAW OFFICE OF THOMAS P. HOGAN
1207 13" Street, Suite I

Modesto, California 95354

Telephone: 818.788.8081

Facsimile: 209.492.9356

Scott A. Miller, Esq.

Bonnie Fong, Esq.

LAW OFFICES OF SCOTT A MILLER, APC
5023 Parkway Calabasas

Calabasas, California 91301-8081

Telephone: 818.788.8081

Facsimile: 877.578.3555

The documents were served by the following means:

(BY U.S. MAIL) I enclosed the documents in a sealed envelope or package addressed to
the persons at the addresses listed above and:

11
/1

4825-0835-2351.1
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Case 1:18-cv-00352-AWI-SKO Document 1-10 Filed 03/12/18 Page 2 of 2

Placed the envelope or package for collection and mailing, following our ordinary
business practices. I am readily familiar with the firm’s practice for collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice, on the same day that correspondence is placed
for collection and mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the U.S. Postal
Service, in a sealed envelope or package with the postage fully prepaid.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on March 12, 2018, at Sacramento, California.

atricia A. Day

4825-0835-2351.1




ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Former Employee Sues American Property Management Over Alleged Wage Violations,
Discrimination
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